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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 01 July 2017 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

ASSETS  Restated  Restated 

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6  1,426,872  1,362,572  1,001,273 

Intangibles 8  6,623  7,402  6,492 

Advance for capital expenditure 7  18,207  -  - 

Long-term deposits  12,143  11,747  3,222 

 1,463,845  1,381,721  1,010,987 

Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 9  63,239  58,673  56,235 

Stock in trade 10  324,830  224,659  246,650 

  Trade debts 11  402,706  454,623  149,400 

Loans and advances 12  123,641  61,510  53,748 

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  13,973  9,387  16,877 

Taxation - net 13  138,581  111,248  109,127 

Short-term investments  -  -  36,000 

Cash and bank balances 14  35,513  79,733  22,942 

 1,102,483  999,833  690,979 

Total assets  2,566,328  2,381,554  1,701,966 

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 15  346,809  301,573  287,212 

Revaluation surplus on property and plant 16  144,962  161,552  175,887 

Accumulated profit  415,651  405,169  308,150 

 907,422  868,294  771,249 

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 17  67,968  60,746  145,223 

Finance lease liabilities 18  200,636  264,448  4,683 

Deferred liabilities 19  289,687  238,754  261,565 

 558,291  563,948  411,471 

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20  203,452  297,614  165,715 

Unclaimed dividend  2,527  1,302  461 

Short term borrowings 21  737,682  484,941  241,898 

Current portion of non-current liabilities 22  156,954  165,455  111,172 

 1,100,615  949,312  519,246 

Total equity and liabilities  2,566,328  2,381,554  1,701,966 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

 Restated 

Sales - net 24  4,074,873  3,312,401 

Cost of  sales 25 )3,689,056( )2,949,201( 

Gross profit  385,817  363,200 

Selling expenses 26 )27,397( )23,771( 

Administrative expenses 27 )100,650( )83,714( 

Impairment loss on trade debts 11 )3,633( )4,212( 

)131,680( )111,697( 

Operating profit  254,137  251,503 

Other income - net 28  20,149  39,800 

Other expenses 29 )38,367( )92,171( 

)18,218( )52,371( 

Financial charges 30 )127,088( )66,821( 

Profit before taxation  108,831  132,311 

Taxation 31 )34,020( )8,855( 

Profit after taxation  74,811  123,456 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 32  2.16  3.56 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

 Restated 

Profit after taxation  74,811  123,456 

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

- Remeasurements of defined benefit plan 19.1.4 )429(  192 

- Deferred tax on remeasurements of defined benefit plan  124 )56( 

)305(  136 

 Total comprehensive income for the year  74,506  123,592 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 Share 
Capital 

 Revaluation 
surplus on 

Property & Plant  

 Revenue 
Reserve- 

Accumulated 
Profit 

 Total Equity 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

Balance as at 1 July 2017  287,212    175,887  308,150  771,249 

Total comprehensive income for the year

- Profit after taxation for the year  -  -  123,456  123,456 

- Other comprehensive income for the year  -  -  136  136 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  123,592  123,592 

Transfer of incremental depreciation - 
net of deferred tax  -  (15,116)  15,116  - 

Surplus on assets disposed off - net of tax  -  (1,393)  1,393  - 

Effect of change in tax rate  -  2,174 -  2,174 

 -  (14,335)  16,509  2,174 

Distribution to members of the Company

- Issuance of bonus shares @ 5%  14,361  -  (14,361)  - 

- Final dividend @ 10% for the year ended
30 June 2017  -  -  (28,721)  (28,721)

Total distributions  14,361  -  (43,082)  (28,721)

Balance as at 30 June 2018 - Restated  301,573  161,552  405,169  868,294 

Balance as at 1 July 2018 - as previously 
reported

 301,573  161,552  407,360  870,485 

Effect of restatement - note 43  -  -  (2,191)  (2,191)

Balance as at 1 July 2018 - Restated  301,573  161,552  405,169  868,294 

Balance as at 1 July 2018 - Restated  301,573  161,552  405,169  868,294 

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 -

   net of tax  -  -  (5,221)  (5,221)

Adjusted balance as at 1 July 2018  301,573  161,552  399,948  863,073 

Total comprehensive income for the year

- Profit after taxation for the year  -  -  74,811  74,811 

- Other comprehensive income for the year  -  -  (305)  (305)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  74,506  74,506 

Transfer of incremental depreciation - 

    net of deferred tax  -  (16,590)  16,590  - 

 -  (16,590)  16,590  - 

Distribution to members of the Company

- Issuance of bonus shares @ 15%  45,236  -  (45,236)  - 

- Final dividend @ 10% for the year

    ended 30 June 2018  -  -  (30,157)  (30,157)

Total distributions  45,236  -  (75,393)  (30,157)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  346,809  144,962  415,651  907,422 

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2019
Note 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 

Restated

------- Rupees in '000' -------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation  108,831  132,311 
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation and amortization  133,176  119,816 
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  198  (554)
Provision for Workers' Profits Participation Fund  5,742  7,285 
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund  17  4,700 
Provision for slow moving stock in trade  263  32,022 
Provision for shared based payment  1,301  - 
Other assets written off  3,002  5,188 
Impairment loss on trade debts  3,633  4,212 
Operating assets written off  -  27,384 
Charge for staff retirement benefit - gratuity  19,891  16,558 
Finance cost  127,088  66,821 

 403,142  415,743 
Changes in:
Stores, spares and loose tools  (4,566)  (2,438)
Stock in trade  (100,434)  (10,031)
Trade debts  40,929  (309,435)
Loans and advances  (65,133)  (7,762)
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  (4,586)  7,490 
Trade and other payables  (87,935)  127,557 

 (221,725)  (194,619)
Cash generated from operations  181,417  221,124 
Financial charges paid  (68,573)  (35,191)
Gratuity paid  (950)  (2,360)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid  (7,285)  (8,139)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid  (4,700)  (4,709)
Taxes paid  (27,533)  (44,966)
Long-term security deposits - net  (396)  (48,337)
Net cash generated from operating activities  71,980  77,422 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (176,883)  (136,917)
Advance for capital expenditure  (18,207)  - 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  3,455  753 
Short term investments redeemed  -  36,000 
Additions in intangible assets  -  (3,115)
Net cash used in investing activities  (191,635)  (103,279)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal repayment of lease obligations  (72,257)  (3,466)
Dividend paid  (28,932)  (27,880)
Short-term loans obtained  3,118,399  2,393,847 
Short-term loans repaid  (2,874,702)  (2,157,402)
Long term loans obtained  80,000  7,491 
Long term loans repaid  (94,465)  (101,182)
Finance cost paid on long-term finances  (48,619)  (29,897)
Net cash generated from financing activities 79,424 81,511
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (40,231)  55,654 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  62,379  6,725 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33  22,148  62,379 
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Ecopack Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited. The registered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Hattar Industrial Estate, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. 
The principal business activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET) bottles and preforms 
for the market of Beverages and other liquid packaging industry.

Geographical location and address of business unit / plant:

Hattar Purpose
Plot - 112,113, Phase V, Hattar Industrial Estate, Hattar, KPK Registered office and factory

Rawalpindi Purpose
19, Citi villas Near High Court Road, Rawalpindi Head Office

Karachi Purpose
Suite # 306, 3rd Floor, Clifton Diamond, Block - 4, Clifton, Karachi Administration Office

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

-  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board   
(IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), and  

-  provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the  provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for following items which are measured 
on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

Items Measurement basis

Liabilities for cash-settled shared-based payment arrangements Fair Value

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation

Property, plant and equipment Revalued amount (Property and plant)

This is the first set of the Company's annual financial statements in which IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' 
and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' have been applied. Changes to significant accounting policies are described in note 4.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
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The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments, assumptions and estimates made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

Note
i)      Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment 5.1

ii)      Useful life and amortization of Intangible assets 5.2

iii)     Provision for slow moving and obsolete store, spares and loose tools 5.3

iv)     Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock in trade 5.4

v)      Provision for staff retirement benefits 5.8

vi)     Provision for taxation 5.9

vii)    Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables 5.6

2.5 Measurement of fair values
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities. The Company has an established controlled framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements including Level 3 values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs, if relevant, and valuation adjustments. If third party information, 
such as broker codes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained 
from the third parties to support the conclusion that their valuations meet the requirements of approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation 
issues are reported to the Company's Audit Committee.

 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorized into following levels of fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in valuation techniques:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 above that are observable market data for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable 
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 
change has occurred.

3. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the 
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2019:

i)     IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The amendment to IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. 
The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. 
The management is in process of determining the potential impact of the interpretation on Company’s financial statements.
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ii)    IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
The amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces 
existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 
‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. 
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to 
the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The management is in process of 
determining the potential impact of the standard on Company’s lease arrangements.

iii)   IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
Amendment to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement at amortised cost or FVTOCI, 
IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion – i.e. the cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and 
interest’. Some prepayment options could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from 
the other party (negative compensation). The amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with 
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

iv)   IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’
Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such 
entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as 
long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and 
IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an 
impact on Company’s financial statements.

v)    IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’
Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined 
benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for 
the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan 
and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

vi)   IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’
Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which the 
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued 
amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or 
a group of assets.  The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must 
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. 
The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and 
therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements.

vii)  IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in   Accounting 
Estimates and Errors'
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the 
definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS 
Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general 
purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

viii) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS in the future.. The 
Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee 
in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework 
will be subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallise. 
The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS 
requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 
2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.
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ix)   Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle
The improvements address amendments to following approved accounting standards:

a)    IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement
The amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that 
meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains 
control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains 
joint control of the business.

 b)    IAS 12 'Income Taxes'
The amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial instruments 
classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits. 

c)    IAS 23 'Borrowing costs'
The amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop 
an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to have 
an impact on Company’s financial statements.

4 CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company has initially applied IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' from 
1 July 2018. The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

- reclassification of carriage outward expenses from 'distribution expenses' (now selling expenses) to 'cost of sales' for 
transition to IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers';

- an increase in impairment losses recognised on financial assets for transition to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'; and

- reclassification of impairment loss on trade debts from other expenses to a separate line item in the statement of profit 
or loss, for transitions IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'.

4.1 IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It 
replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised 
when a customer obtains control of the goods or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time 
or over time – requires judgment.

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 using retrospective effect method, whereby the effects of initially applying IFRS 15 have 
been carried retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors', with the effect of applying this standard on 1 July 2018. Accordingly, the information 
presented for 2018 has been reclassified as detailed below.

The Company has reviewed its revenue streams i.e. sale of PET preforms and PET bottles and underlying contracts with 
customers and, as result of this review, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the Company’s statement of profit 
or loss, statement of comprehensive income and financial position except for reclassification of carriage and freight outward 
from distribution expenses (now selling expenses) to cost of sales. The Company has expanded the disclosure of note 24 to its 
financial statements as prescribed by IFRS 15 by disclosing the Company’s disaggregated revenue streams.

4.2 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or 
sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 by taking cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' to the opening 
retained earnings at the beginning of the annual reporting period i.e. 01 July 2018. In choosing the transition method for IFRS 
9, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed in IFRS 9 from restating prior periods in respect of IFRS 9’s 
classification and measurement (including impairment) requirements.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial 
Statements', which require impairment of financial assets to be presented in a separate line item in the statement of profit 
or loss and OCI. Previously, the Company’s approach was to include the impairment of trade receivables in other expenses. 
Consequently, the Company reclassified impairment losses amounting to Rs. 4.21 million, recognised under IAS 39, from ‘other 
expenses’ to ‘impairment loss on trade receivables’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI for the year ended 30 June 2018. 

The following table summarises the impact, net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening balance of retained earnings.
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Impact of 
adopting IFRS 9 

on opening 
balance

---Rs. in '000'---

Retained earnings

Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9  7,354 

Related deferred tax  (2,133)

Impact at 1 July 2018  5,221 

4.2.1          Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI and FVTPL. 
The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed 
and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and 
receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the 
scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities.

For an explanation of how the Company classifies and measures financial instruments and accounts for related gains and 
losses under IFRS 9, refer note 5.5.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new 
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 July 2018. 
 
The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 July 2018 relates solely to the new impairment 
requirements.

Original 
classification 
under IAS 39

New 
classification 
under IFRS 9Note

Financial Assets

Long-term deposits Loans and 
receivables FVTPL

Trade debts  (i) Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost

Short-term deposits Loans and 
receivables FVTPL

Other receivables Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost

Cash and Bank balances Loans and 
receivables Amortized cost

Financial Liabilities

Long-term loans Amortized cost Amortized cost

Finance lease liabilities Amortized cost Amortized cost

Trade and other payables Amortized cost Amortized cost

Accrued markup Amortized cost Amortized cost

Short-term borrowings Amortized cost Amortized cost

There is no change in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at the initial application date of IFRS 9, 
except the following:

None of the Company's financial instruments have been classified as FVTOCI and FVTPL except for long term deposits and 
trade deposits which does not meet ''solely payments of principal and interests (SPPI)'' test criteria.
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(i)  Trade debts

An net increase of Rs. 7.35 million in the allowance for impairment over trade debts was recognised in opening retained 
earnings at date of initial application on transition to IFRS 9. Consequently, carrying amount of trade debts as at 01 July 2018 
decreased from Rs. 454.62 million to Rs. 447.27 million.

4.2.2          Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new impairment model 
applies to trade and other receivables measured at amortised cost. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than 
under IAS 39.

For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected to increase and become 
more volatile. The Company has determined that the application of IFRS 9’s impairment requirements at 1 July 2018 results in 
an additional allowance and write off for impairment which is detailed in note 11.1.

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated (see also note 4 for detail of changes in 
significant accounting policies).

5.1 Property, plant and equipment
Owned

i)       Recognition and measurement

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, except for free hold 
land, factory building and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated loss, if any. Cost of an asset comprises acquisition and other costs which are directly attributable to the 
asset. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected to the 
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are 
transferred to specified assets as and when assets are available for use.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of plant and machinery is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is 
carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair 
value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of 
plant and machinery (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earning / unappropriated profit.

ii)      Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.

iii)     Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss 
in the year in which the asset is derecognized. The related balance of surplus on revaluation of such item, if any, is 
transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropriated profits).

iv)     Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying either straight line method or written down value method 
whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset less its estimated residual value, if any, is written off over its useful life 
at the rates specified in note 6 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the time at which 
asset is available for use until asset is disposed off.

The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year end. The Company's estimate of residual value of property and equipment as at 30 June 2019 did not 
require any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.
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Leased

Assets subject to finance lease are initially recorded at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments under 
the lease agreements and the fair value of the leased assets each determined at the inception of lease. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is stated at the amount determined at initial recognition less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any.

Leased assets are depreciated on reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 6 to the financial statements as 
disclosed in the fixed asset schedule to the financial statements.

5.2 Intangible assets
i)       Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. An intangible asset is 
recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and 
that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents price equivalent to the consideration 
given, i.e., cash and cash equivalent paid.

 ii)      Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

iii)     Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and 
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

5.3 Stores, spares and loose tools
Stores, spares and loose tools excluding items in transit are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. 
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other 
charges incurred thereon accumulated to the date of statement of financial position.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary 
to make the sale.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on management's best estimate 
regarding their future usability.

5.4 Stock-in-trade
Raw materials and packing materials are valued at weighted average cost and finished goods are valued at lower of  weighted 
average cost and net realizable value. Raw material and packing material in transit are valued at invoice value plus other 
charges paid thereon.

Work-in-process is valued at weighted average cost of raw materials including a proportionate of manufacturing overheads. 

Cost of finished goods includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on management's best estimate 
regarding there future usability.

5.5 Financial Instruments
i)       Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities 
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially 
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 
A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

ii)     Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets – Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL.
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for 
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period 
following the change in business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets – Policy applicable before 1 July 2018

The Company classified its financial assets into following 
categories:

- At fair value through profit or loss

- Held to maturity

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale

The classification depended on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determined the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities - Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is 
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii)     Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The 
Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of modified liability are 
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid 
is recognised in profit or loss.

iv)     Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position, if the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.6 Impairment
i)       Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost. 
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is 
exposed to credit risk.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade receivables, the Company applies a 
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, instead recognizes a loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when 
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue 
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical 
experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.
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The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the counter party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such 
as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting 
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. 
the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company 
expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial 
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets and 
charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a 
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and 
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery 
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order 
to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018

The Company assesses at each date of  statement of financial position whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline 
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence 
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and 
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset, previously recognized in equity, is removed from equity and 
recognized in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognized in the profit or loss in the 
statement of comprehensive income on equity instruments, classified as available-for-sale, are not reversed. Impairment testing of 
trade debts and other receivables is carried out by the company on annual basis and the related impairment is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss.

5.7 Leases
i)     Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value 
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in 
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

ii)   Lease payments

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.



65

5.8 Staff Benefits
i)    Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii)    Share-based payment arrangements

An entity recognises a cost (expense or asset) over the vesting period and a corresponding liability. Measurement is based on 
the fair value of the liability at each reporting date, and it is remeasured until settlement date. The share-based payment is 
classified and accounted for as either equity-settled or cash-settled, depending on whether the entity has a present obligation 
to settle in cash.

iv)   Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the company pays fixed contribution into a 
separate entity and will have no legal and constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contributions to 
defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit  expense in statement of profit or loss when they are due. 
The Company also operates an approved funded contributory provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 5% per annum of the basic salary. Company's 
contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

v)   Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The company's net obligation 
in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in 
return for their service in current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation 
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Gratuity scheme is unfunded and 
covers those permanent employees and management staff of the Company who have completed prescribed qualifying period 
of service.  Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. For non-vested benefits past service 
cost is amortized on the straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

All actuarial gains and losses arising on valuation are charged to other comprehensive income.

5.9 Taxation
i)       Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to  
items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not 
meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets.

ii)      Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rate enacted by or substantively enacted 
at the date of  statement of financial position, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous year. Provision 
for current tax is based on higher of the taxable income at current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax 
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any or minimum tax u/s 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after taking into 
account tax credits or Alternative corporate tax u/s 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, for income covered under 
final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect 
of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior 
periods is recognized as an asset.

iii)     Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position method, providing for temporary differences, at the date 
of  statement of financial position, between carrying amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized 
for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and / or carry forward of unused 
tax losses or tax credits can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets 
to be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the date 
of statement of financial position.

5.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowings costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except, to the extent of borrowing costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are 
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

5.11 Revenue from contracts with customers
Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, including significant payment terms

Customers obtain control of PET bottles and PET preforms when these are delivered to and have been accepted at their premises. 
Invoices are generated at that point in time. Invoices are usually payable within 30-90 days. No material discounts are provided 
against sale of these good. Some contracts permit the customer to return an item. Returned goods are exchanged only for new 
goods – i.e. no cash refunds are offered.

Accounting Policy

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers at their premises. For contracts that 
permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in 
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore, the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected 
returns, which are estimated based on the historical data for specific types of product and size etc. In these circumstances, a refund 
liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognised.  The 'right to recover returned goods' asset is measured at the 
former carrying amount of the inventory less any expected costs to recover goods. Based on historical data, no refund liability and 
the right to recover returned goods is recognized. The Company reviews its estimate of expected returns at each reporting date and 
updates the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly.

5.12 Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of 
the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate 
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into 
the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences 
are generally recognised in profit or loss and presented within finance costs.

5.13 Dividend
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognized as a liability in the financial 
statements in the period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the date of  statement of 
financial position is considered as a non adjusting event and is recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such 
transfers are made.

5.14 Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessment of the time value of the money and the risk specific to the obligation. Provisions are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

2019 2018

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 6.1  1,409,907  1,346,684 

Capital machines' spares 6.6  16,965  15,888 

 1,426,872  1,362,572 
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6.1
PRO

PERTY, PLA
N

T A
N

D
 EQ

U
IPM

EN
T

Leasehold 
land 

Factory 
building 

and roads 

Plant and
m

achinery 
Factory 

equipm
ent 

 Furniture 
and fitti

ngs 
 O

ffi
ce 

equipm
ent 

 Vehicles 
 Total 

 O
w

ned 
 Leased 

 O
w

ned 
 Leased 

 ------------------------------------------------------  Rupees in '000'  ------------------------------------------------------ 

Cost and revaluation
 23,750 

 108,480 
 1,530,097 

 - 
 286,860 

 5,874 
 23,332 

 11,103 
 14,617 

 2,004,113 

Accum
ulated depreciation

 - 
 (37,973)

 (741,770)
 - 

 (206,414)
 (4,194)

 (13,648)
 (7,324)

 (3,542)
 (1,014,865)

N
et book values as at 30 June 2017

 23,750 
 70,507 

 788,327 
 - 

 80,446 
 1,680 

 9,684 
 3,779 

 11,075 
 989,248 

For the year 30 June 2018

Additions during the year
 - 

 7,553 
 44,931 

 411,689 
 33,304 

 - 
 3,040 

 236 
 3,488 

 504,241 

D
isposals / w

rite offs / im
pairm

ent

- Cost 
 - 

 - 
 (107,873)

 - 
 (366)

 (1,084)
 (1,424)

 (1,090)
 - 

 (111,837)

- Accum
ulated depreciation 

 - 
 - 

 79,910 
 - 

 366 
 1,084 

 1,341 
 974 

 - 
 83,675 

 - 
 - 

 (27,963)
 - 

 - 
 - 

 (83)
 (116)

 - 
 (28,162)

D
epreciation for the year - note 6.2

 - 
 (3,661)

 (57,582)
 (6,567)

 (45,493)
 (168)

 (1,968)
 (750)

 (2,454)
 (118,643)

N
et book values as at 30 June 2018

 23,750 
 74,399 

 747,713 
 405,122 

 68,257 
 1,512 

 10,673 
 3,149 

 12,109 
 1,346,684 

Cost and revaluation
 23,750 

 116,033 
 1,467,155 

 411,689 
 319,798 

 4,790 
 24,948 

 10,249 
 18,105 

 2,396,517 

Accum
ulated depreciation

 - 
 (41,634)

 (719,442)
 (6,567)

 (251,541)
 (3,278)

 (14,275)
 (7,100)

 (5,996)
 (1,049,833)

N
et book values as at 30 June 2018

 23,750 
 74,399 

 747,713 
 405,122 

 68,257 
 1,512 

 10,673 
 3,149 

 12,109 
 1,346,684 

For the year 30 June 2019

Additions during the year
 - 

 15,543 
 131,122 

 393 
 30,656 

 - 
 1,578 

 1,458 
 18,523 

 199,273 

Inter transfers

- Cost 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 1,986 
 (1,986)

 - 

- Accum
ulated depreciation 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 1,340 

 (1,340)
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 3,326 

 (3,326)
 - 

D
isposals 

- Cost 
 - 

 - 
 (4,163)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 (170)

 (2,110)
 (2,670)

 (9,113)

- Accum
ulated depreciation 

 - 
 - 

 2,230 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 115 
 1,432 

 1,683 
 5,460 

 - 
 - 

 (1,933)
 - 

 - 
 - 

 (55)
 (678)

 (987)
 (3,653)

D
epreciation for the year - note 6.2

 - 
 (3,854)

 (58,739)
 (26,365)

 (35,900)
 (151)

 (2,075)
 (638)

 (4,675)
 (132,397)

N
et book values as at 30 June 2019

 23,750 
 86,088 

 818,163 
 379,150 

 63,013 
 1,361 

 10,121 
 6,617 

 21,644 
 1,409,907 

Cost and revaluation
 23,750 

 131,576 
 1,594,114 

 412,082 
 350,454 

 4,790 
 26,356 

 11,583 
 31,972 

 2,586,677 

Accum
ulated depreciation

 - 
 (45,488)

 (775,951)
 (32,932)

 (287,441)
 (3,429)

 (16,235)
 (4,966)

 (10,328)
 (1,176,770)

N
et book values as at 30 June 2019 - note 6.8

 23,750 
 86,088 

 818,163 
 379,150 

 63,013 
 1,361 

 10,121 
 6,617 

 21,644 
 1,409,907 

Rate of depreciation
0%

5%
-10%

5%
-20%

8%
10%

-40%
10%

10%
-33%

20%
20%



68

 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

6.2 Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 25  123,717  111,854 

Administrative expenses 27  8,680  6,789 

 132,397  118,643 

6.3 Latest revaluation of  the Company's assets was carried out in 2016-17 by M/s K.G. Traders (Private) Limited, independent 
valuers, taking market value / depreciated replacement cost, as applicable, as a basis of valuation. The revaluation resulted in a 
net surplus of Rs. 32.63 million. The fair value when determined falls under level 3 hierarchy. Sensitivity analysis has not been 
presented since data about observable input is not available. The incremental values at the date of revaluation of the revalued 
operating property, plant and machinery are being depreciated over the remaining useful lives of these assets. 

The forced sale value of the revalued plant and machinery, factory building and roads, and leasehold land, at the date of 
revaluation was Rs. 638 million, Rs. 54.49 million and Rs. 19 million respectively.

6.4 Had there been no revaluation, the net carrying value of specific classes of operating fixed assets would have been as follows:

 2019 2018 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

Leasehold land  2,995  2,995 

Factory building and roads  56,959  40,756

Plant and machinery  1,052,726  989,424 

 1,112,680  1,033,175 

6.5 All operating fixed assets disposed off during the year had an aggregate net book value less than Rs. 5 million and all the 
disposals were made in accordance with the Company's policy.

6.6 Capital machines' spares

Gross carrying value 9  17,395  16,318 

Provision for impairment  (430)  (430)

 16,965  15,888 

6.7 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Usage of property Total area (in 
sq ft) 

Plot - 112,113, Phase V, Hattar Industrial

Estate, Hattar, KPK. Registered office and factory  102,507 

6.8 Specific borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 1.75 million (2018: Rs. 3.87 million) has been capitalized at 3 months KIBOR plus 150 
basis points (2018: three months KIBOR plus 150 bps).
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7. ADVANCE FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

This represents advance paid to a foreign supplier for procurement of a machine under large pack bottle project of the Company. 
This advance is for period of less than twelve months. Following are the details of the advance. 

Amount 
in Foreign 
CurrencyName of Supplier Currency Country

 2019 2018 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

Zhejiang (Mega) China Africa

Foreign Trade Co. Limited CNY China  836  18,207 -

 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

8. INTANGIBLES - ERP Software

Cost

Opening 
balance  9,042  6,959 

Additions  -  3,115 

Reclassification to property, plant and equipment  -  (1,032)

 9,042  9,042 

Accumulated Amortization

Opening 
balance  (1,640)  (467)

Amortization for the year  (779)  (1,173)

 (2,419)  (1,640)

Closing balance  6,623  7,402 

Rate of amortization and amortization method (per annum) 10% straight line 10% straight 
line

9. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares  88,735  83,232 

Loose tools  2,314  2,174 

 91,049  85,406 

Provision against slow moving stores and spare parts  (10,415)  (10,415)

Capital spares transferred to property, plant and equipment 6.6  (17,395)  (16,318)

 63,239  58,673 

10. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material  68,026  62,229 

Packing material  15,975  14,418 

Work in process 10.1  198,170  132,514 

Finished goods 10.1  43,613  51,048 

 325,784  260,209 

Provision for obsolete stocks 10.2  (954)  (35,550)

 324,830  224,659 
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10.1 This includes stock costing Rs. 21.02 million (2018: Rs. 26.21 million) carried at net realizable value of Rs. 20.94 million (2018: 
Rs. 25.87 million).

10.2 Allowance for obsolete stocks
This represents allowance for stock for which active buyers are not available. Accordingly its net realizable value is zero.

 2019 2018 

Note  ------- Rupees in '000' -------

Balance at 1 July  35,550  3,528 

Provision for the year  263  33,624 

Write off during the year  (34,859)  (1,602)

Balance at 30 June  954  35,550 

11. TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured

- Considered good  402,706  454,623 

- Considered doubtful  7,060  14,841 

 409,766  469,464 

Allowance for impairment 11.1  (7,060)  (14,841)

 402,706  454,623 

11.1 Allowance for impairment

Balance at 1 July  14,841  25,421 

Effect of impairment as per IFRS 9:

Reversal of provision for impairment under IAS 39  (14,841)  - 

Life time expected credit loss  4,595  - 

Credit impaired trade debts  17,601  - 

Impact on retained earnings on initial application of IFRS 9  7,355  - 

Credit impaired trade debts written off  (17,601)  - 

Adjusted balance as at 01 July  4,595  25,421 

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  3,633  4,212 

Credit impaired trade debts written off during the year  (1,168)  (14,792)

Balance at 30 June  7,060  14,841 

11.2 Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables is included 
in note 39.

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good

Advance to suppliers - unsecured 12.1  111,825  56,066 

Advance to suppliers written off during the year  -  (5,189)

 111,825  50,877 

Advances to employees

Advances for expenses  5,700  8,101 

Loans to employees - secured against staff 

retirement benefit (gratuity)  6,116  2,532 

 123,641  61,510 
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12.1 This includes advances amounting to Rs. 14.013 million (2018: Rs. 7.731 million) to foreign suppliers for purchase of items of 
store and capital spares in normal course of business of the Company. These are adjustable in less than twelve months period. 
Detail of major suppliers is as follows:

Amount 
in Foreign 
CurrencyName of Supplier Currency Country

 2019 2018 

 ------- Rupees in '000' ------- 

- Guangdong Xinglian Precision 

Machinery Limited Company CNY China  392  8,201  1,515 

- Sidel France USD France  22  3,105  - 

- Husky Injection Molding System 
Ltd. EUR England  9  1,554  854 

- Triskelion BV USD Netherlands  13  -  1,471 

- Krones AG USD Germany  3  376  1,396 

 13,236  5,236 

13. ADVANCE TAX - Net

Advance tax as at 01 July  111,248  109,127 

Tax charge for the year 31  (200)  (42,845)

Paid during the year  27,533  44,966 

Advance tax as at 30 June  138,581  111,248 

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank

 - in saving accounts 14.1  659  430 

 - in current accounts  34,754  79,203 

 35,413  79,633 

Cash in hand  100  100 

 35,513  79,733 

14.1 These carry markup at 12.97% (2018: 6.92%) per annum.

15. SHARE CAPITAL

15.1 Authorized share capital

This represents 50,000,000 (2018: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

15.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

 2019 2018  2019 2018 

---------- Number ---------- ------- Rupees in '000' -------

 10,262,664  10,262,664 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

issued against cash  102,627  102,627 

 24,418,247  19,894,647 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

issued as fully paid bonus shares  244,182  198,946 

 34,680,911  30,157,311  346,809  301,573 
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15.2.1 Movement in issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

 2019 2018  2019 2018 

---------- Number ---------- ------- Rupees in '000' -------

 30,157,311  28,721,211 Balance at 1 July  301,573  287,212 

 4,523,600  1,436,100 Bonus shares issued during year  45,236  14,361 

 34,680,911  30,157,311 Balance at 30 June  346,809  301,573 

15.2.2 Closing number of shares include 10,943,639 (2018: 6,159,423) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each held by the Directors of the 
Company.

15.2.3 All ordinary share holders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting. 

 2019  2018 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

16. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY AND PLANT
Gross surplus
Balance as at 01 July  217,809  241,089 

Less : Reversal due to disposal  -  (1,990)

Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings  (23,338)  (21,290)

 194,471  217,809 

Related deferred tax charge
Balance as at 01 July  (56,257)  (65,202)

Effect of change in tax rate  -  2,174 

Deferred tax on fixed assets written off during the year  -  597 

Deferred tax on incremental depreciation charged during the year  6,748  6,174 

 (49,509)  (56,257)

 144,962  161,552 

17. LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Loans from banking companies 17.1  66,667  60,746 

Share Appreciation Rights to Chief Executive Officer 17.2  1,301  - 

 67,968  60,746 

17.1 Loans from banking companies - secured
Askari Bank Limited 17.1.1  57,000  143,000 

Bank Al-Habib Limited 17.1.2  80,000  - 

JS Bank Limited  -  8,465 

 137,000  151,465 

Less: current portion of long term loans  (70,333)  (90,719)

 66,667  60,746 
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17.1.1 This represents restructuring of working capital finance into long term debt in 2015. It carries mark-up at 3 months KIBOR plus 
1.5% p.a on quarterly basis. The loan is repayable in 5 years through 20 quarterly installments. The finance is secured by way of 
first pari passu hypothecation charge over all present and future current assets of the Company and first Pari Passu charge of 
Rs. 450 million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee of founder Director / sponsor 
of the Company.

17.1.2 This represents term loan obtained to release import documents under letter of credit arrangements for the capital expenditure. 
Tenor of the loan is five years (including six months grace period). This is repayable in equal quarterly installments. It carries 
mark-up at 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a. payable quarterly. The loan is secured by specific (first exclusive) charge of Rs. 171 
million over newly imported / purchased machinery.  

17.2 Share Appreciation Rights to Chief Executive Officer (cash-settled)

On 27 October 2018, the Board approved share appreciation rights to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) affixing 96,946 shares. 
The CEO is entitled to an amount equal to the market value of these shares after 3 years, beginning from 27 October 2018. 
Liability for these rights is measured at fair value at year end of Rs. 13.42 per share. 

 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

Restated 

18. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance at 1 July  330,870  9,117 

Leases obtained during the year 18.1  21,717  324,440 

Payments made during the year  (72,257)  (2,687)

 280,330  330,870 

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (79,694)  (66,422)

18.2  200,636  264,448 

18.1 This represents machines acquired under finance lease agreements with Habib Bank Limited and Bank Of Khyber. Interest rate 
used as discounting factor ranges from 8.68% to 13.42% (2018: 8.11% to 8.18%) per annum. Taxes, repair, replacements and 
insurance are borne by the Company. Under the terms of arrangement, the Company has an option to acquire leased assets at 
the end of respective lease terms and intends to exercise the option. There are no restrictions imposed on the Company under 
the term of leases.

18.2 The future minimum lease payments and the period in which they become due are :

2019

Minimum 
lease 

payments 
Markup Value Present Value 

------------------- Rupees in '000' -------------------

More than one year but less then five years  223,365  (22,729)  200,636 

Upto one year  115,777  (36,083)  79,694 

Total minimum lease payments  339,142  (58,812)  280,330 
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2018

Minimum 
lease 

payments 
Markup Value Present Value 

------------------- Rupees in '000' -------------------

More than one year but less then five years  302,130  (37,682)  264,448 

Upto one year  90,199  (23,777)  66,422 

Total minimum lease payments  392,329  (61,459)  330,870 

 2019  2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff retirement gratuity 19.1  125,695  106,325 

Deferred taxation 19.2  163,992  132,429 

 289,687  238,754 

19.1 Staff gratuity

19.1.1 The figures are based on actuarial valuation report for Company's Employees' Gratuity Scheme carried out by Nauman 
Associates as on 30 June 2019.

 2019  2018 

 ------- Rupees in '000' ------- 

19.1.2 Movement in liability recognized in statement of financial position:

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July  106,325  92,319 

Expense for the year  19,891  16,558 

Benefits paid during the year  (950)  (2,360)

Remeasurements chargeable in Other Comprehensive Income  429  (192)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June  125,695  106,325 

19.1.3 Expense recognized in statement of profit or 
loss is as follows:

Current service cost  10,368  8,692 

Interest cost  9,523  7,291 

Past service cost  -  575 

 19,891  16,558 

19.1.4 Remeasurements chargeable in Other Comprehensive Income
are as follows:

Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions  (3,926)  (1,167)

Experience adjustments  4,355  975 

 429  (192)
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19.1.5 Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation for the current year and previous four years is as follows:

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligation

 Experience 
adjustments on 

obligations 

June 2019  125,695  429 

June 2018  106,325  192 

June 2017  92,319  (5,143)

June 2016  75,822  (1,067)

June 2015  66,981  157 

19.1.6 Year End Sensitivity Analysis (± 100 bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation

 2019 2018 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

Discount Rate + 100 bps  119,252  100,594 

Discount Rate - 100 bps  132,885  112,918 

Salary Increase + 100 bps  133,042  113,028 

Salary Increase - 100 bps  118,996  100,387 

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6 years.

19.1.7 Following significant assumptions were used by the actuary in valuation of the 
scheme:

 2019 2018 

Discount rate per annum (%) 14.25% 9.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum (%) 14.25% 9.00%

Average expected remaining working life time of employees 5 years 6 years

 2019  2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

19.2 Deferred taxation - net

Taxable temporary differences:

Revaluation surplus on property and plant  49,509  56,257 

Leased assets  33,714  (3,682)

Accelerated depreciation  127,139  131,415 

 210,362  183,990 

Deductible temporary differences:

Staff gratuity  (36,452)  (30,834)

Tax loss carried forward  (4,448)  - 

Others  (5,470)  (20,727)

 (46,370)  (51,561)

19.2.1  163,992  132,429 
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 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

19.2.1  The movement in respect of deferred taxation is as follows: 

 Balance at 01 July  132,429  169,246 

 Effect of initial application of IFRS 9  (2,133)  - 

 Adjusted balance as at 01 July   130,296  169,246 

 Charged to statement of profit or loss  33,820  (33,990)

 Effect of adjustments in revaluation surplus  

 due to change in tax rate  -  (2,174)

 Charged to other comprehensive income  (124)  56 

 Others  -  (709)

 Balance at 30 June  163,992  132,429 

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors and bills payable  132,214  236,739 

Accrued and other liabilities 43,575 26,684

Advances from customers - unsecured 20.1  8,064  8,180 

Sales tax payable  10,211  10,071 

Withholding taxes payable  2,960  3,167 

Workers' Profit Participation Fund  5,742  7,285 

Workers' welfare fund payable 17 4,700

Payable to provident fund  669  788 

 203,452  297,614 

20.1 This includes contract liabilities amounting to Rs. 3.82 million (2018: Rs. 1.95 million). This also includes security deposit from 
customers amounting to Rs. 2.5 million (2018: Rs. 0.65 million) which are utilizable for Company business as per the terms 
agreed with customers. No amount was utilized for the purpose of the Company's business during the year. 

21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Facility 
Amount

 2019 2018 

Note

 ------- Rupees in '000' ------- 

From banking companies - Secured

Short-term running finance  25,000  13,365  17,354 

Inland bill purchased  -  -  24,239 

Finance against trust receipt  580,000  551,667  347,888 

 605,000  565,032  389,481 

Others

Short-term loans  157,000  154,157  90,000 

Accrued markup on short term borrowings  -  18,493  5,460 

21.1  762,000  737,682  484,941 
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21.1 Short-term running finance and other facilities are obtained under mark-up arrangements from various commercial banks and 
one Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) carrying mark-up ranging from 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.5% to 2% (2018: 3 Months 
KIBOR plus 1.5% to 2%) per annum calculated on daily product basis.

These facilities are secured by first pari passu and ranking hypothecation charges of entire present and future current assets, 
equitable mortgage of property of the Company and personal guarantee of one original founder / sponsor Director of the 
Company.

 2019 2018 

Note  ------- Rupees in '000' ------- 

22. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT 
LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term loans 17.1  70,333  90,719 

Current portion of finance lease liabilities 18  79,694  66,422 

Accrued markup on long term loans  2,719  1,255 

Accrued markup on lease liability  4,208  7,059 

 156,954  165,455 

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 An appeal regarding admissibility of sales tax input on various products amounting to Rs. 35.9 million relating to tax year 2017 
is currently under adjudication with the Commissioner Appeals. The initial assessment was made by the Deputy Commissioner, 
Haripur through assessment Order No. 08/2018 dated 18th December 2018.  The Company has not made any provision in this 
respect as in view of its Legal Advisor the said case is likely to be decided in favour of the Company on legal grounds.

23.2 Bank guarantees issued by two financial institutions of the Company amounting to Rs. 9.15 million (2018: 9.15 million) in favor 
of the Company's fuel & electricity suppliers.

 2019  2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

24. SALES - Net
Sales

- PET Preforms  2,634,497  1,881,076 

- PET Bottles  2,133,212  1,999,279 

24.1  4,767,709  3,880,355 

Less: Sales Tax

- PET Preforms  (380,406)  (273,150)

- PET Bottles  (309,749)  (290,396)

 (690,155)  (563,546)

- Sales returns and discounts  (2,681)  (4,408)

 4,074,873  3,312,401 

24.1 Revenue recognised during the period includes Rs. 3.1 million (2018: Rs. 2.7 million) which was shown as advances from 
customers at the beginning of the period.
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 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

25. COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed 25.1 2,858,304  2,156,480 

Packing material consumed 25.2  121,679  105,251 

Store consumed  48,721  59,584 

Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.3  206,983  186,698 

Electricity, gas and water  233,893  241,769 

Travelling and conveyance  16,805  15,216 

Vehicle repair and maintenance  11,624  8,284 

Rent, rate and taxes  29,369  28,832 

Repair and maintenance  11,470  10,558 

Insurance  5,471  4,778 

Medical  6,925  5,167 

Carriage and freight inward  11,939  8,660 

Communication charges  2,416  1,905 

Printing, postage and stationery  2,226  2,563 

Lab testing  690  856 

Fees and subscription  2,224  948 

Entertainment  1,301  1,165 

Staff welfare & support  3,220  3,085 

Depreciation  123,717  111,854 

Miscellaneous  123  129 

3,699,100  2,953,782 

Work-in-process - opening  132,514  63,558 

Work-in-process - closing  (198,170)  (132,514)

 (65,656)  (68,956)

Cost of goods manufactured  3,633,444  2,884,826 

Finished goods - opening  51,048  70,533 

Finished goods - closing  (43,613)  (51,048)

 7,435  19,485 

Carriage and freight outward  48,177  44,890 

3,689,056  2,949,201 

25.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock  62,229  105,515 

Purchases  2,864,101  2,113,194 

Closing stock  (68,026)  (62,229)

 2,858,304  2,156,480 

25.2 Packing material consumed
Opening stock  14,418  10,572 

Purchases during the year  123,236  109,097 

Closing stock  (15,975)  (14,418)

 121,679  105,251 

25.3 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 16.36 million (2018: Rs. 12.21 million).
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 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

26. SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 26.1  19,701  17,539 

Vehicle running and maintenance  2,335  1,895 

Office rent  704  1,198 

Travelling and conveyance  3,307  1,910 

Communications  358  323 

Entertainment  303  280 

Professional charges  50  50 

Repair and maintenance  196  136 

Electricity, water and gas  353  274 

Printing and stationery  69  41 

Miscellaneous  21  125 

 27,397  23,771 

26.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 2.45 million (2018: Rs. 1.61 million).

27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 27.1  58,520  50,049 

Directors' meeting fee  5,475  4,275 

Legal and professional  6,178  3,328 

Travelling and conveyance  6,016  5,104 

Vehicle running and maintenance  4,295  2,510 

Medical  2,431  2,086 

Rent, rate and taxes  320  960 

Auditors' remuneration 27.2  1,400  915 

Electricity, gas and water  445  485 

Entertainment  662  892 

Courses, seminar and subscription  2,280  1,702 

Repair and maintenance  1,503  1,391 

Communications  761  887 

Printing and stationery  552  995 

Insurance  61  54 

Advertisement  226  78 

Depreciation and amortization  9,459  7,962 

Miscellaneous  66  41 

 100,650  83,714 

27.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 4.77 million (2018: Rs. 2.73 million).

27.2 Auditors' remuneration 

Audit fee  800  600 

Fee for half yearly review  300  230 

Other advisory services  125  75 

Out-of-pocket expense  175  10 

 1,400  915 
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 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

28. OTHER INCOME - NET

Income from financial assets

- Profit on bank deposits  101  1,852 

Others

- Scrap sale  10,341  25,653 

- Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  -  554 

- Reversal of WWF  -  2,121 

- Long outstanding liabilities written back  3,879  - 

- Miscellaneous income  5,828  9,620 

 20,149  39,800 

29. OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund  17  4,700 

Workers' Profits' Participation Fund  5,742  7,285 

Donation 29.1  897  864 

Abnormal loss of materials  28,248  14,728 

Provision for obsolete stock in trade  263  32,022 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  198  - 

Other receivables written off  3,002  5,188 

Operating assets written off  -  27,384 

 38,367  92,171 

29.1 Donation to ''Punjab Veterans Cricket Association'' exceeds 10% of the total amount of donation and none of the directors and 
their spouse have any interest in the donee's fund.

29.2 An impairment loss on trade receivables of Rs. 4.21 million in the year ended 2018 was reclassified from other expenses to a 
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

30. FINANCE COST

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Mark-up on:

Long-term financing  11,546  15,262 

Short-term borrowing  59,695  27,172 

Inland bill purchased (IBP)  6,271  2,672 

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  33,936  7,274 

 111,448  52,380 

Letter of credit charges  9,794  10,729 

Bank and other charges  5,846  3,712 

 127,088  66,821 



81

 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

31. TAXATION

Current 
Provision for current year  -  19,829 

Prior year charge  200  23,016 

 200  42,845 

Deferred 

For the year  33,820  (41,806)

Effect of change in tax rate  -  7,816 

 33,820  (33,990)

 34,020  8,855 

31.1 Relationship between tax (income) / expense and accounting profit:

Profit before taxation  108,831  133,722 

Applicable tax rate  29%  30% 

Tax at the applicable tax rate  31,561  40,117 

Tax effect / adjustment of change in tax rate  -  (5,642)

Tax effect / adjustment on rebates  -  (49,252)

Tax effect of prior year charge  200 23,016

Other permanent differences  2,259 616 

 34,020  8,855 

31.2 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year 2018. Tax returns are deemed 
to be assessed under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (''the Ordinance'') unless selected for an audit by the 
taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax may, at any time during a period of five years from date of filing of return, 
select the deemed assessment order for audit.

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
  2019 2018 

Restated

32.1 Basic

Profit after taxation (Rupees in '000')   74,811  123,456 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares   34,680,911  34,680,911 

Earnings per share - basic (Rupees)   2.16  3.56 

32.2 The number of shares for the prior period has also been adjusted for the effect of bonus shares issued during the current year 
and prior year restatements.
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32.3 Diluted

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company has no convertible dilutive potential 
ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2019, which would have effect on the basic EPS, if the option to convert would have 
been exercised.

 2019 2018 

Note ------- Rupees in '000' -------

33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  Restated 

Cash and bank balances 14  35,513  79,733 

Short term running finance 21  (13,365)  (17,354)

 22,148  62,379 

34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including certain benefits to directors, chief executive and 
executives of the Company are as follows:

2019

Chief Executive 
Officer Directors  Executive  Total 

----------------------------- Rupees in '000' -----------------------------

Managerial remuneration  20,925  1,500  23,353  45,778 

Provision for shared based payment  1,301  -    -    1,301 

Cash bonus  3,000  -    -    3,000 

Employee benefits  2,595  -    15,590  18,185 

 27,821  1,500  38,943  68,264 

Number of persons 1 1 9

2018

Chief Executive 
Officer Directors  Executive  Total 

----------------------------- Rupees in '000' -----------------------------

Managerial remuneration  18,113  250  17,522  35,885 

Cash bonus  2,180  -    -    2,180 

Employee benefits  2,603  -    11,694  14,297 

 22,896  250  29,216  52,362 

Number of persons 1 1 6

34.1 In addition to the above, the Directors, Chief Executive Officer and some of the executives have been provided with free use 
of the Company maintained cars. Charge for the year in respect of staff retirement benefit gratuity is determined on basis of 
actuarial valuation. 
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 2019 2018 

35. PROVIDENT FUND ------- Rupees in '000' -------

a) Disclosure with regards to Provident Fund:

(i) Size of the Fund  12,751  11,355 

(ii) Cost of investment made  11,355  9,603 

(iv) Fair value of investments  12,137  10,795 

(iii) Percentage of investment made 95% 95%

b) Break-up of investments is as under:

 2019  2018 

 Rs. in '000  Percent  Rs. in '000  Percent 

Mutual funds
• Meezan Mutual Fund  556 4.36%  735 6.47%

• NBF Funds

- Money Market Fund  1 0.01%  1 0.01%

- Stock Fund  216 1.69%  263 2.32%

- RIBA-Free Savings Fund  1,266 9.93%  1,163 10.24%

- Asset Allocation Fund  377 2.96%  413 3.63%

- Islamic Asset Allocation Fund  296 2.32%  334 2.94%

- Islamic Aggressive Income Fund  - 0.00%  - 0.00%

- Islamic Stock Fund  - 0.00%  - 0.00%

 2,712 21.27%  2,909 25.62%

Banks deposits
• Meezan Bank Limited Karachi  - 0.00%  - 0.0%

• Meezan Bank Limited Haripur  9,425 73.91%  7,886 69.5%

Others  614 4.82%  560 4.9%

 12,751 100%  11,355 100%

35.1 The investments in collective investment scheme out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of 
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose. The above figures are unaudited.

 2019 2018 

36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES  ------- Number ------- 

Number of employees as at 30 June  280  266 

Average number of employees during the year  277  251 
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37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors 
are able to exercise influence, employees' provident fund and gratuity fund. Balances with related parties have been disclosed 
elsewhere in the financial statements. Transactions with related parties during the year end are as follows:

 2019 2018 

------- Rupees in '000' -------

Dividend to Non-Executive Directors  5,088  941 

Meeting fee paid to Non-Executive Directors  5,475  4,275 

Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of key management

Personnel  29,321  23,146 

Dividend to key management personnel 
(Executive Directors)  5,207  4,971 

Contribution towards employees' provident fund  7,465  6,581 

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions during the year:

Related
Party

Basis of
relationship

Bonus shares 
issued

Number of 
shares held in 
the Company 

(Closing) 

Aggregate %age 
shareholding in 
the Company 

Mr. Amar Zafar Khan Chairman of the Board  97  744 0.002%

Mr. Hussain Jamil Chief Executive Officer  777,769  5,962,893 17%

Mr. Ahsan Jamil Non-Executive Director  583,535  3,907,370 11%

Mr. Shahid Jamil Non-Executive Director  141,330  1,045,528 3%

Mr. Ali Jamil Executive Director  3,341  25,616 0.074%

Mr. Asad Ali Sheikh Non-Executive Director  97  744 0.002%

Ms. Laila Jamil Non-Executive Director  97  744 0.002%

Employees' Provident Fund Contributory Fund  N/A  N/A  N/A 

38. SEGMENT REPORTING

38.1 Description of operating segments
The Company's primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are determined based 
on the Company's management and internal reporting structure.  The Company has two operating segments which are also the 
reporting segments i.e., injection and blowing. Segment results and other information are provided on the basis of products.

Reportable segments Operations

Injection Engaged in buying PET and other raw materials for the purpose of production of PET 
preforms which is the finished product of this segment which are used as a raw material 
in Blowing segment for manufacture of PET bottles.

Blowing Engaged in using PET preforms produced by the Injection segment, purchasing PET 
preforms and other raw materials from external suppliers for the purpose of production 
of PET bottles which is the finished product of this segment.
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38.2 Information about reportable segments
Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment profit / (loss) before tax is used to measure 
performance because management believes that this information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the respective 
segments relative to other entities that operate in the same industries.

 Injection (PET preforms)  Blowing (PET bottles)  Total 

 June 2019  June 2018  June 2019  June 2018  June 2019  June 2018 

--------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000' ---------------------------------------------

Total Sales  3,515,886  2,652,111  1,821,321  1,706,713  5,337,207  4,358,824 

Less: Elimination of 

intersegment sales  (1,262,334)  (1,046,423)  -  -  (1,262,334)  (1,046,423)

Sales - net  2,253,552  1,605,688  1,821,321  1,706,713  4,074,873  3,312,401 

Total Cost of Sales  (2,093,794)  (1,480,420)  (2,857,596)  (2,515,204)  (4,951,390)  (3,995,624)

Less: Elimination of 

intersegment cost  -  -  1,262,334  1,046,423  1,262,334  1,046,423 

Cost of sales - net  (2,093,794)  (1,480,420)  (1,595,262)  (1,468,781)  (3,689,056)  (2,949,201)

 159,758  125,268  226,059  237,932  385,817  363,200 

Selling expenses  (15,152)  (10,838)  (12,245)  (12,933)  (27,397)  (23,771)

Administrative

expenses  (55,663)  (40,580)  (44,987)  (43,134)  (100,650)  (83,714)

Impairment loss on 

trade debts  (2,009)  (2,042)  (1,624)  (2,170)  (3,633)  (4,212)

 (72,824)  (53,460)  (58,856)  (58,237)  (131,680)  (111,697)

Operating profit  86,934  71,808  167,203  179,695  254,137  251,503 

Segment assets  1,389,558  1,180,374  548,181  521,688  1,937,739  1,702,062 

Unallocated assets  -  -  -  -  628,589  679,492 

 1,389,558  1,180,374  548,181  521,688  2,566,328  2,381,554 

Segment liabilities  842,948  548,764  66,549  193,264  909,497  742,028 

Unallocated 
liabilities  -  -  -  -  749,409  771,232 

 842,948  548,764  66,549  193,264  1,658,906  1,513,260 

Capital expenditure  121,100  459,863  41,335  29,340  162,435  489,203 

Unallocated capital 

expenditure  -  -  -  -  36,838  15,038 

 121,100  459,863  41,335  29,340  199,273  504,241 

38.3 Administrative expenses, impairment loss on trade debs and distribution costs are allocated on the basis of the net sales value 
for each segment.

38.4 Revenue from four customers of the Company amounted to Rs. 2,479 million (2018: Rs. 1,547 million). The segments from 
which these revenues were generated are listed below:

- Blowing Segment: two customers having revenues amounting to Rs. 1,179 million (2018: Rs. 1,038 million)
- Injection Segment: one customer having revenues amounting to Rs. 837 million (2018: Rs. 220 million)
- Injection and Blowing: one customer having revenues amounting to Rs. 463 million (2018: Rs.290 million)
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39. Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

The effect of initially applying IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial instruments is described in Note 4.2. Due to the transition 
method chosen, comparative information has not been restated to reflect the new requirements, except for certain hedging 
requirements.

39.1 Accounting classifications and fair values

Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and fair 
value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any 
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted market 
prices at the close of trading on the period end date. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted 
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, 
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

39.1.1 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Note Carrying amount Fair value

Amortized 
Cost FVTPL Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------

30 June 2019

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long-term deposits  -  12,143  12,143  -  - 12,143  12,143 

Trade debts - net of impairment loss 11  402,706  -  402,706  -  -  -  - 

Short-term deposits  -  4,412  4,412  -  -  4,412  4,412 

Cash and bank balances 14  35,513  -  35,513  -  -  -  - 

 438,219  16,555  454,774  -  - 16,555  16,555 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term loans (including current portion) 17.1  137,000  -  137,000  -  -  -  - 

Lease liabilities (including current portion) 18  280,330  -  280,330  -  -  -  - 

Trade and other payables 20  132,214  -  132,214  -  -  -  - 

Accrued and other liabilities 20  43,575  -  43,575  -  -  -  - 

Short-term borrowings 21  737,682  -  737,682  -  -  -  - 

 1,330,801  -  1,330,801  -  -  -  - 

Carrying amount Fair value

Loans 
and

receivables

Other
financial
liabilities

Total Level 
1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------

30 June 2018

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long-term deposits  11,747  -  11,747  -  -  -  - 

Trade debts - net of provision 11  454,623  -  454,623  -  -  -  - 

Short-term deposits  2,828  -  2,828  -  -  -  - 

Cash and bank balances 14  79,733  -  79,733  -  -  -  - 

 548,931  -  548,931  -  -  -  - 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term loans (including current portion) 17.1  -  151,465  151,465  -  -  -  - 

Trade creditors and bills payable 20  -  236,739  236,739  -  -  -  - 

Accrued and other liabilities 20  -  26,684  26,684  -  -  -  - 

Short-term borrowings 21  -  484,941  484,941  -  -  -  - 

 -  899,829  899,829  -  -  -  - 
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39.2 Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies 
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The 
Company's audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

39.2.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. "Impairment loss of financial assets" recognized 
in profit or loss amounts to Rs. 3.63 million and relates only to trade debts.

i)     Trade receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base. Geographically there is no 
concentration of credit risk. 

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness 
before the Company's payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's reviews includes external 
ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and in some cases bank 
references. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment 
period of one to three months for customers.

The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables. The Company does not have trade debts for 
which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral. At 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of the Company's most 
significant customer was Rs.99.63 million (2018: Rs. 96.01 million)

Comparative information under IAS 39

An analysis of the credit quality of trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired and the ageing of trade receivables 
that were past due but not impaired as at 30 June 2018 is as follows:

2018

 Rupees in '000 

Neither past due nor impaired:  285,554 

Past due but not impaired:

- Past due 1-30 days  151,051 

- Past due 31-90 days  417 

- Past due 91 and above  17,601 

 454,623 

Impaired trade receivables at 30 June 2018 had a gross carrying amount of Rs. 14.841 million
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Expected credit loss assessment for corporate customers as at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts has been disclosed in note 11.1. Trade receivables written 
off during 2018 are still subject to enforcement activity.

ii)    Bank balances
The Company has bank balances of Rs. 35.41 million at 30 June 2019 (2018: Rs. 79.63 million). The bank balances are held with 
banks which are rated A1 to A+, based on PACRA and VIS ratings. While bank balances are also subject to the requirements of 
IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial as the counter parties have reasonably high credit ratings.

39.2.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates 
or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative 
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest 
rate risk.

a)    Foreign exchange risk management

PKR is the functional currency of the Company and exposure arises from transactions and balances in currencies other than PKR 
as foreign exchange rate fluctuations may create unwanted and unpredictable earnings and cash flow volatility. The Company's 
potential currency exposure comprise:

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

- The potential currency exposures are discussed below

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the 
Company are periodically restated to PKR equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the statement of profit or loss. 
The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management strategy.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as at date of statement of financial position.

b)     Interest / mark up rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its running finance arrangements which is 
repriced at a maximum period of 120 days.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the 
Company's is as follows:

2019 2018

Note   ------- Rupees in '000 ------- 

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial asset:

Bank balance in interest-bearing accounts 14  659  430 

 659  430 
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2019 2018

Note   ------- Rupees in '000 ------- 

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 21  737,682  484,941 

Long-term loans (including current portion) 17.1  137,000  151,465 

Finance lease liabilities 18  280,330  330,870 

1,155,012  967,276 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL. Therefore, a change in interest 
rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
During the year, if average KIBOR interest rate on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher / lower with all other variables 
held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 11.55 million (2018: higher / lower by Rs. 
9.67 million) respectively, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest exposure on variable rate borrowing.

39.2.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Beyond effective working capital and 
cash management, the Company mitigates liquidity risk by arranging short-term financing from highly rated financial institutions. 

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on 
financial liabilities. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the contractual amounts are as follows:

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Up to one 
year

One 
to two 
years

Two 
to five 
years

 Five years 
onwards

2019 Note ---------------------------------------- Rupees '000' ----------------------------------------

Short-term borrowings 21  737,682  737,682  737,682  -    -    - 

Long-term loans - Secured 
(including current portion) 17.1  137,000  162,884  80,793  24,976  57,115  - 

Finance lease liabilities 
(including current portion) 18  280,330  339,142  115,777  96,687  

242,455  - 

Trade and other payables 20  175,789  175,789  175,789  -    -    - 

 1,330,801  1,415,497  1,110,041  121,663 299,570  - 

2018

Short-term borrowings 21  484,941  484,941  484,941  -    -  - 

Long-term loans - Secured 
(including current portion) 17.1  151,465  164,075  106,010  58,065  -  - 

Finance lease liabilities 
(including current portion) 18  330,870  392,329  90,199  113,404 188,726  - 

Trade and other payables 20  263,423  263,423  263,423  -    -  - 

 1,230,699  1,304,768  944,573  171,469 188,726  - 

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier or at significantly different 
amounts.

The contractual cash flows relating to long term borrowings have been determined on the basis of expected mark-up rates. The 
mark-up rates have been disclosed in note 5 to these financial statements.
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39.3 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order 
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return on capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and 
keeping in view future investment requirements and expectation of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings 
('long term financing' and 'short term borrowings' as shown in the balance sheet). Total capital comprises shareholders’ equity 
and surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as shown on the face of  the statement of financial position.

There were no changes to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirements.

2019 2018

40. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Blowing
Capacity - no. of bottles (in '000) 304,200  304,200 

Production - no. of bottles (in '000) 176,535  174,143 

Utilization 58% 57%

Injection
Capacity - no. of preforms (in '000)  796,733  510,983 

Production - no. of preforms (in '000)  467,866  387,500 

Utilization 59% 76%

40.1 The capacity utilization of injection department increased from 510 million preforms to 796 million preforms due to installation 
of new machines in April 2018.

41. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 21, 2019 has proposed a common stock dividend at the rate of 10%  
(2018: 15%) and cash dividend at the rate of 5% (2018: 10%) for the year ended 30 June 2019. These appropriations will be 
placed before shareholders for approval in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and the effect thereof will be accounted for 
in the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020.



92

42 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Liabilities Equity

Short term 
borrowings

Short-term 
running 
finance

Finance 
lease 

liabilities

Long term 
loan

Share 
capital

Accumulated 
profit Total

----------------------------------------------------- Rupees '000' -----------------------------------------------------

2019

Balance at 01 July 2018  467,587  17,354  330,870  151,465  301,573  399,948  1,668,797 

Changes from financing 
cash flows

Proceeds from loans  3,118,399  -  -  80,000  -  -  3,198,399 

Repayment of loans (2,874,702)  -  -  (94,465)  -  -  (2,969,167)

Payment of finance lease 
liabilities  -  (72,257)  -    -  -  (72,257)

Finance cost paid for the year  -  -  (36,787)  (11,832)  -  -  (48,619)

Dividend paid  -  -  -  -    -  (28,932)  (28,932)

Total changes from financing 
cash flows  243,697  -  (109,044)  (26,297)  -  (28,932)  79,424 

Other changes

Liability related

Decrease in short-term 
running finance  -  (3,989)  -  -   -  -  (3,989)

Finance leases obtained  -  -  21,717  -  -  -  21,717 

Finance cost expense for the 
year  13,033  -  36,787  11,832  -  -  61,652 

Total liability related other 
changes  13,033  (3,989)  58,504  11,832  -  -  79,380 

Equity related

Total comprehensive income 
for the year  -  -  -  -  -  74,506  74,506 

Effect of impairment as per 
IFRS 9  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Transfer of incremental 
depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  16,590  16,590 

Issue of bonus shares  -  -  -  -  45,236  (45,236)  - 

Change in unclaimed dividend  -  -  -  -  -  (1,225)  (1,225)

Total equity related other 
changes  -  -  -  -  45,236  44,635  89,871 

Balance at 30 June 2019  724,317  13,365  280,330  137,000  346,809  415,651  1,917,472 



93

Liabilities Equity

Short term 
borrowings

Short-term 
running 
finance

Finance 
lease 

liabilities

Long term 
loan

Share 
capital

Accumulated 
profit Total

---------------------------------------------- Rupees'000' --------------------------------------

2018

Balance at 01 July 2017  224,662  17,236  9,117  248,738  287,212  308,150  1,095,115 

Changes from financing 
cash flows

Proceeds from loans  2,393,847  -  7,491  -  -  2,401,338 

Repayment of loans  (2,157,402)  -  (3,466)  (101,182)  -  -  (2,262,050)

Finance cost paid for the year  -  -  (8,438)  (21,459)  -  -  (29,897)

Dividend paid  -  -  -    -  (27,880)  (27,880)

Total changes from 
financing cash flows  236,445  -  (11,904)  (115,150)  -  (27,880)  81,511 

Other changes

Liability related

Increase in short term running 
finance  -  118  -  -  -  -  118 

Finance leases obtained  -  -  324,440  -  -  -  324,440 

Finance cost expense for the 
year  6,480  -  9,217  17,877   -  -  33,574 

Total liability related other 
changes  6,480  118  333,657  17,877  -  -  358,132 

Equity related

Total comprehensive income 
for the year  -  -  -  -  -  123,592  123,592 

Transfer of incremental 
depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  15,116  15,116 

Issue of bonus shares  -  -  -  -  14,361  (14,361)  - 

Surplus on assets disposed off 
- net of tax  -  -  -  -  -  1,393  1,393 

Change in unclaimed dividend  -  -  -  -  -  (841)  (841)

Total equity related other 
changes  -  -  -  -  14,361  124,899  139,260 

Balance at 30 June 2018  467,587  17,354  330,870  151,465  301,573  405,169  1,674,018 
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43. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

43.1. Prior period erros

Effect of below errors of prior year has been applied retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of IAS 8, 'Accounting 
policies, change in accounting estimates and errors'. 

- Previously down payments relating to leased assets were presented as 'long term deposits' in the statement of financial position 
which should have been adjusted against 'finance lease liabilities'. 

- Deferred tax liability was incorrectly accounted for changes in tax rates.

- Incremental depreciation on revaluation surplus on property and plant was not accurately transferred to accumulated profit.

- Other expenses were overstated due to effect of surplus on assets disposed off.  

Effect of above correction of errors has resulted in the  following:

As previously 
reported

Effect of 
Reclassification/ 

restatement

Balance as after 
reclassification/ 

restatement

----------------- Rupees in '000' -----------------

30 June 2018

Statement of financial position
Finance lease liability  374,972  (44,102)  330,870 

Long-term security deposits  55,849  (44,102)  11,747 

Deferred taxation  130,255  2,174  132,429 

Accumulated profit  407,360  (2,191)  405,169 

Statement of Profit or loss
Tax charge  6,681  2,174  8,855 

Profit after taxation  127,041  (3,585)  123,456 

43.2. Initial application of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

On Initial application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 some comparative figures have been reclassified detail of which is given in note 4 
to the financial statements.

43.3. Reclassification

Accrued markup has now been presented under "current portion of non-current liabilities" and "short-term borrowings" for 
better presentation.
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44. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on September 21, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.	

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER





1.   Signature:	 _____________________________________________________

       Name:     	 _____________________________________________________

       Address:  	 _____________________________________________________

      CNIC / NICOP

      or

	 Passport No. 	 _____________________________________________________

2.   Signature:	 _____________________________________________________

       Name:     	 _____________________________________________________

       Address:  	 _____________________________________________________

CNIC / NICOP

	 or

	 Passport No. 	 _____________________________________________________

Proxy Form
The Company Secretary
EcoPack Limited
Plot 112-113, Phase 5, Industrial
Estate Hattar, District Haripur
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

I / We __________________________________________________________________ of __________________________________________________________

being member (s) EcoPack Limited, and holder of Ordinary Share as per register Folio No __________________________ and / or CDC 

Participant I.D. No. _______________________________________________ and Account / Sub-Account No. _______________________

do hereby appoint _________________________________________ of ___________________________________ as my / our proxy to 

attend, speak and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held  

on Saturday October 26, 2019 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

and    at  any  adjournment  thereof.  As witness I / We set my / our hand (s) this _____________________________ day of _____________________ 

2019 signed the said proxy in the presence of:

Witnesses:

Note:

i.	 The Proxy Form in order to be valid must be deposited with the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
ii.	 The proxy must be a member of the company.
iii.	 CDC Shareholders and their Proxies must attached either an attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card or Passport 

with the proxy form.

Signature should agree with the 
specimen signature registered 

with  the Company)

Signature Revenue
Stamp
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